

STATE OF NEVADA  
LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL BUREAU

LEGISLATIVE BUILDING  
401 S. CARSON STREET  
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747  
Fax No.: (775) 684-6600



LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800  
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK, *Assemblywoman, Chairman*  
Rick Combs, *Director, Secretary*

INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6821  
DEBBIE SMITH, *Senator, Chairman*  
Mark Krmpotic, *Fiscal Analyst*  
Cindy Jones, *Fiscal Analyst*

RICK COMBS, *Director*  
(775) 684-6800

BRENDA J. ERDOES, *Legislative Counsel* (775) 684-6830  
PAUL V. TOWNSEND, *Legislative Auditor* (775) 684-6815  
DONALD O. WILLIAMS, *Research Director* (775) 684-6825

**MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA**

Name of Organization: Legislative Commission's Subcommittee to Review Regulations  
(NRS 233B.067 and NRS 233B.0675)

Date and Time of Meeting: Thursday, April 24, 2014  
1:30 p.m.

Place of Meeting: Grant Sawyer State Office Building  
Room 4412  
555 East Washington Avenue  
Las Vegas, Nevada

Note: Some members of the Subcommittee may be attending the meeting and other persons may observe the meeting and provide testimony through a simultaneous videoconference conducted at the following location:

Legislative Building  
Room 3137  
401 South Carson Street  
Carson City, Nevada

If you cannot attend the meeting, you can listen or view it live over the Internet. The address for the Nevada Legislature website is <http://www.leg.state.nv.us>. Click on the link "Calendar of Meetings."

**Note: Please provide the secretary with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.**



## AGENDA

**Note:** Items on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed. Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration. An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be delayed at any time.

I. Opening Remarks  
Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick, Chairwoman

II. Public Comment  
(Because of time considerations, speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers. A person may also have comments added to the minutes of the meeting by submitting them in writing either in addition to testifying or in lieu of testifying. Written comments may be submitted in person or by email, facsimile, or mail before, during or after the meeting.)

*For  
Possible  
Action*

III. Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Legislative Commission's Subcommittee to Review Regulations held on November 22, 2013

*For  
Possible  
Action*

IV. Review of R007-14 Pursuant to NRS 233B.067(4). A copy of the regulation to be considered is attached.

V. Public Comment  
(Because of time considerations, speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers. A person may also have comments added to the minutes of the meeting by submitting them in writing either in addition to testifying or in lieu of testifying. Written comments may be submitted in person or by email, facsimile, or mail before, during or after the meeting.)

VI. Adjournment

---

Note: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify Angela Hartzler or the Legal Receptionist of the Legal Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau, in writing, at the Legislative Building, 401 South Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada 89701-4747, or call (775) 684-6830 as soon as possible.

---

Notice of this meeting was posted in the following Carson City, Nevada, locations: Blasdel Building, 209 East Musser Street; Capitol Press Corps, Basement, Capitol Building; City Hall, 201 North Carson Street; Legislative Building, 401 South Carson Street; and Nevada State Library, 100 Stewart Street.

Notice of this meeting was e-mailed or faxed for posting to the following Las Vegas, Nevada, locations: Clark County Office, 500 South Grand Central Parkway; and Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 East Washington Avenue.

Notice of this meeting was posted on the Internet through the Nevada Legislature's Web site at [www.leg.state.nv.us](http://www.leg.state.nv.us).

**ADOPTED REGULATION OF THE ADMINISTRATOR OF THE  
DIVISION OF STATE PARKS OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT  
OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES**

**LCB File No. R007-14**

Effective April 24, 2014

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 407.0475 and 407.065.

A REGULATION relating to state parks; revising provisions relating to group camping fees; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Section 1.** NAC 407.055 is hereby amended to read as follows:

407.055 1. Except as otherwise provided in NAC 407.050 and 407.052, or unless waived,

the Division will charge and collect the following fees for the use of parks:

Park	Annual Permit Fee	Entrance Fee Per Vehicle	Camping Fee Per Vehicle	Boating Fee Per Vehicle	Group Entrance Fee	Group Entrance and Camping Fee	Miscellaneous Fees
Beaver Dam	\$65	\$7	\$7	N/A	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> <i>and camping fees</i> per vehicle	
Berlin-Ichthyosaur	\$65	\$7	\$10	N/A	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> <i>and camping fees</i> per vehicle	Cabin rental: \$25 per night plus the entrance and camping fees per vehicle  Scheduled tour: \$3 adults \$2 children 6-12
Big Bend of the Colorado	\$65	\$9	\$11 plus \$10 per vehicle at campsites with utility hook-ups	\$6	N/A	N/A	
Cathedral Gorge	\$65	\$7	\$10	N/A	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> <i>and camping fees</i> per vehicle	
Cave Lake	\$65	\$7	\$10	\$2	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> <i>and camping fees</i> per vehicle	For use of the circular domed tent or yurt: \$20 per night plus the entrance and camping fees per vehicle



Park	Annual Permit Fee	Entrance Fee Per Vehicle	Camping Fee Per Vehicle	Boating Fee Per Vehicle	Group Entrance Fee	Group Entrance and Camping Fee	Miscellaneous Fees
Dayton	\$65	\$7	\$10	N/A	\$50 for 1 to 25 persons \$75 for 26 to 50 persons \$100 for 51 to 100 persons \$150 for 101 to 150 persons \$200 for 151 to 300 persons The entrance fee is reduced by the amount of any reservation fee paid by the group	N/A	
Echo Canyon	\$65	\$7	\$10	\$3	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Elgin School House	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	Museum admission: \$1 adults children 12 and under free
Fort Churchill	\$65	\$7	\$10	N/A	\$25 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$25 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Fort Churchill-Buckland Station	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	Museum admission: \$1 adults children 12 and under free
Fort Churchill-Carson River Ranches	\$0	\$7	\$7	N/A	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Kershaw-Ryan	\$65	\$7	\$10	N/A	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	N/A	
Lahontan	\$65	\$7	\$8	\$7	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$15 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Lake Tahoe: Cave Rock	\$85 for an annual permit or \$200 for an annual boating permit	\$10 from April 15 through October 15 \$7 from October 16 through April 14 \$2 for 15 min. photo stop \$5 for launch and leave	N/A	\$7	N/A	N/A	

Park	Annual Permit Fee	Entrance Fee Per Vehicle	Camping Fee Per Vehicle	Boating Fee Per Vehicle	Group Entrance Fee	Group Entrance and Camping Fee	Miscellaneous Fees
Sand Harbor	\$85 for an annual permit or \$200 for an annual boating permit	\$12 from April 15 through October 15 \$7 from October 16 through April 14 \$5 for launch and leave	N/A	\$8 from April 15 through October 15 \$7 from October 16 through April 14	\$400 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	N/A	
Spooner Lake	\$85 for an annual permit or \$200 for an annual boating permit	\$10 from April 15 through October 15 \$7 from October 16 through April 14 \$2 per bike for vehicles with more than 4 bikes No entrance fee charged if the concession for cross-country skiing is in operation	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	Cabin rental: \$65 per night plus the entrance fee per vehicle No cabin rental fee charged if the concession for the cabins is in operation
Mormon Station	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$100 for 1 to 25 persons \$150 for 26 to 50 persons \$200 for 51 to 100 persons \$250 for 101 to 150 persons \$300 for 151 to 300 persons	N/A	Museum admission: \$1 adults children 12 and under free
Old Las Vegas Mormon Fort	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$100 for 2 to 100 persons \$150 for 101 to 200 persons \$200 for 201 to 250 persons	N/A	Museum admission: \$1 adults children 12 and under free
Rye Patch	\$65 for an annual permit or \$100 for an annual boating permit	\$7	\$7	\$3	\$20 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$20 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
South Fork	\$65 for an annual permit or \$100 for an annual boating permit	\$7	\$7	\$3	\$15 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$20 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Spring Mountain Ranch	\$65	\$9	N/A	N/A	\$100 for 2 to 100 persons \$200 for 101 to 200 persons plus the entrance fee per vehicle	N/A	

Park	Annual Permit Fee	Entrance Fee Per Vehicle	Camping Fee Per Vehicle	Boating Fee Per Vehicle	Group Entrance Fee	Group Entrance and Camping Fee	Miscellaneous Fees
Spring Valley	\$65	\$7	\$10	\$3	\$20 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$20 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Valley of Fire	\$75	\$10	\$10 plus \$10 per vehicle at campsites with utility hook-ups	N/A	\$25 plus the entrance fee per vehicle	\$25 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Ward Charcoal Ovens	\$65	\$7	\$7	N/A	N/A	\$20 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Washoe Lake	\$65	\$7	\$10	\$2	Equestrian Group Use \$50 plus the entrance fee per vehicle Main Group Use \$50 for 1 to 25 persons \$75 for 26 to 50 persons \$100 for 51 to 100 persons \$150 for 101 to 150 persons \$200 for 151 to 250 persons Plus the entrance fee per vehicle \$50 to rent arena	Equestrian Group Use \$50 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle \$50 for use of arena Main Group Use \$50 for 1 to 25 persons \$75 for 26 to 50 persons \$100 for 51 to 100 persons \$150 for 101 to 150 persons \$200 for 151 to 250 persons Plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	
Wild Horse	\$65 for an annual permit or \$100 for an annual boating permit	\$7	\$7	\$3	N/A	\$25 plus the entrance <del>fee</del> and camping fees per vehicle	Cabin rental: \$30 per night plus the entrance and camping fees per vehicle

2. A person who pays an entrance fee pursuant to subsection 1 is not authorized to use the facilities of the park from 10 p.m. until 6 a.m. unless the person also pays the camping fee for the park.

3. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the Division will charge and collect from each person who rides a bicycle or horse, walks or enters by vessel into a park an entrance fee of \$1. The Division will charge and collect from each person who rides a bicycle into Spooner Management Area an entrance fee of \$2.

4. The Division will not charge a fee for any vehicle that is towed into a park.

5. The Division will charge, in addition to any other fee imposed pursuant to this chapter, a fee of \$2 for each watercraft in excess of two that is launched from a boat ramp.

6. If a person purchases an annual permit to a park for a vehicle, the person may purchase at the same time a second annual permit to the same park at a discounted price equal to one-half of the price of the annual permit. The annual permit purchased at a discounted price must be for a vehicle registered to the same owner at the same residence as the owner of the vehicle for which the permit was purchased at regular price.